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The Gardner House was begun in 1884, probably not completely
finished until 1887, Choctaw builder James Dyer hand planed and carved
the solid walnut stairway and other interior features. Rough timber
for the two-story structure was hauled by ox team from Paris, Texas,

It was put together with wooden pegs and square nails.,

, Basically, with porches and balconies, the bluntly T-shaped house
is 38 x 47 feet, It contains 9 (or 10) large, high-ceilinged rooms and
two original chimneys, Five fireplaces, both upstairs and down, were
built of native sandstone, Some modernization was done in 1942 (involving
mostly the £illing in of a downstairs corner at the rear), but the house
can be said to remain basically unchanged., It is obviously in need of
considerable routine maintenance work.

As noted in No. 8, the historic structures that antedated the house
itself have long since disappeared - Bethabara Mission without a trace.
Stones do indieate, however, the location of the Eagle County Courthouse,
The Execution Rock, while perhaps impossible ever to authenticate, is at
least interesting, as is the glant cypress and the still visible remains
of the Fort Smith-Fort Towson Road,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The still handsome two-story frame house of Jefferson Gardner
dates only from the mid-1880s, but its site -- on the west bank of
the Mountain Fork River just south of the old Fort Smith-Fort Towson
Road -- played an important role in almost all aspects of life in the
Choctaw Nation from 1832 until the nation itself was dissolved with
statehood in 1907,

Rev, Loring S, Williams came west with the early Choctaw

emigrants, crossing the Mountain Fork here in 1832 (4he—enly-eressing
8 petrea : m-) to establish a mission school he

called Bethabara. (The Hebmew word means "crossing"™ and at the time
thls was the only practical crossing for miles upstream and down,)
The first Eagletown post office was established here in 1834, with
Rev, Williams the first postmaster. In 1837, however, 111 health
forced him to leave the area and Bethabara Mission was closed, But
the strategic rlver-crossing location continued to be occupied

George Hudson, who became Principal Chief of the Choctaw Nation
in 1860, was probably the next to live here., On this site, too, in
1850, the first Eagle County Courthouse was built, a log affair, It
served until 1884 when it was replaced by a square frame building,
that was used until the Choctaw government was abolished, Though it
stood for many years, largely unused, it is marked now only by a few
foundation stones, Immediately to the northeast of the Courthouse
site, between it and the Bethabara Mission site (see enclosed sketch)
1s a stone believed to be the Choctaw's Execution Rock, About 200
yards to the northeast, just to the north of the old military road,
stood -- and still stands -- the road's surest landmark: a 2,000-year-
old cypress, the state's largest (an official breast-high 43 feet,

7 inches in circumference), Under it, legend has it, the Choctaws
made thelr first stop in what is now Oklahoma, In any event it was a
familiar sight to tribal members making their tragic "Trail of Tears"
westward to new homes in the wilderness.,

Jefferson Gardner was born near Wheelock (some 25 miles to the
west) in 1847, 'Both his parents were mixed blood Choctaws, Well
educated for his day, he entered public service ea¥ly—4in-life, serving
in a variety of governmental jobs while farming and ranching in this
area, In 1878 he went into the mercantile business at Eagletown,
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No, 8, Significance
Gardner, Jefferson, House

then the Choctaw's principal town in this corner of the Nation, He served
as postmaster for many years (the office had long since been moved to
the town), opened a cotton gin, and became a wealthy, influential leader,

In 1884, the year he became treasurer of the Choctaw Nation, Gardner
moved to the Bethabara Mission site, built a store and the comfortable
house that still stands, Records show that he owned over 1,100 acres of
land in this area at one time., In 1888 he was chosen circuit judge, a
position he filled until 18%, when he was elected Principal Chief of
the Choctaw Nation,

Ironically, his reaching the Nation's highest position marked the
beginning of the end of hls successful career, Pressure was beginning to
build for the Choctaws to accept allotments of land and open the Nation
to all comers, Gaxrdner vigorously opposed the move, The Nation was
badly divided on the issue and he lost in his bid for re-election in 1896,
His political loss was matched by financial losses., He retired to
Eagletown, a broken man, He died in 1906,

Gardner was only a one-half blood Choctaw, but he had "the vision
of the full blood in tribal affairs," according to John Bartlett Meserve.
"He lingered from an age which was rapidly departing, being the last
chief of the old regime." This may well have made him "a political
mlsfit" so far as the allotment controversy is concerned, Meserve admits,
"but be it said to his credit, he stood adamant in his suppoert of the
age-old traditions of his people as he understood them, . , .The honesty
and integrity of Jefferson Gardner was salvaged from that hectic period,"

The stature of Gardner, as well the three-quarter-century role this
immediate site played in the religlous, educational, commercial and
political life of the Choctaws, would appear to make the Gardner House
and area immediately surrounding it worthy of National Register recognition
and protection, o
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